
 

 

 -1- 

 

SOUTH BROWARD DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
OCTOBER 29, 2015 

 

Present: 

Scott Hodges, Chairperson  Kevin M. Hart, District Director 

James Ryan, Vice Chairperson     Douglas R. Bell, Legal Counsel 

Vicki Minnaugh, Treasurer      Reina Muniz, Recording Secretary 

Robert E. Goggin, IV, Secretary     General Public: See Attached List 

Alanna Mersinger, Commissioner       

Thomas Good, Commissioner        

Mercedes Santana-Woodall, Commissioner 

        

Absent: 

      

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

01.   CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

   Chair Hodges called the SBDD Board Meeting to order at 8:01 A.M., with Vice Chair Ryan, 

Commissioner Minnaugh, Commissioner Mersinger, Commissioner Good, and Commissioner Goggin 

present; followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.   

  

02.   PUBLIC COMMENT  

 

None.  

 

03.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Commissioner Goggin moved for approval of the minutes of the September 14th, 2015, South Broward 

Drainage District Board meeting.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Minnaugh and carried 

unanimously by those present. 

 

04. DIRECTOR’S REPORT  

 

 

A. RELEASE & VACATION OF DRAINAGE EASEMENTS IN TOWNHOMES AT 

RAINTREE DEVELOPMENT (“PEMBROKE LAKES SOUTH” PLAT, PB 119, PG 1) 

 

Commissioner Santana-Woodall joined the meeting at approximately 8:04 A.M. 

 

District Director Hart stated that South Broward Drainage District (SBDD) received a request to 

release and vacate its interests in five (5)  separate easements (“Easements”) located within the 

Raintree Redevelopment properties of the “Pembroke Falls – Phase 1” plat and the in the City of 

Pembroke Pines.  The Easements were previously dedicated by separate instruments and are 

being replaced by new easements as needed. 



 

 

 -2- 

 

The request was submitted by representatives for the developer of the Raintree Redevelopment 

properties, which includes three phases of residential developments. 

The applicant is requesting the release and vacation of the following easements: 

1. Release and Vacation of Drainage Easement previously recorded under OR Book 49573, Page 

587, BCR. 

2. Partial Release and Vacation of Drainage easement previously recorded under OR Book 

50793, Page 791, BCR. 

3. Release and Vacation of Lake Maintenance Easement previously recorded under OR Book 

50793, Page 784, BCR. 

4. Release and Vacation of Drainage, Flowage and Storage Easement previously recorded under 

OR Book 50793, Page 773, BCR. 

5. Release and Vacation of Boat Ramp/Lake Access Easement previously recorded under OR 

Book 50793, Page 779, BCR. 

 

The easements in question are all located within (or adjacent to) the Townhomes at Raintree 

development and are depicted on the “Abandoned Easement Exhibit”.  With the exception of the 

Boat Ramp/Lake Access Easement, all of the easements to be vacated are being replaced with 

new easements as depicted on the “New Easement Exhibit”.   The Boat Ramp/Lake Access 

Easement is no longer needed and is not being replaced.  The final development plan for the 

Townhomes at Raintree development is slightly different from when the easements were 

originally recorded, which necessitates this action. 

SBDD staff has reviewed the request and has no objections.  There are no financial impacts to this 

Agenda Item, other than SBDD administrative costs; all other costs will be incurred by the 

property owner. 

The above-mentioned vacations and releases are subject to the dedication of new easements 

across the Raintree Redevelopment properties as indicated on the New Easement Exhibit and any 

additional easements as required by SBDD; and reimbursement of all legal and recording costs 

associated with the redevelopment of the Raintree Redevelopment properties. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval for the Release & Vacation of Drainage Easements 

at the Raintree Development.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Mersinger. 

Discussion ensued.   

 

Commissioner Good asked District Director Hart if there were concerns regarding the maintenance 

of the lake, how would the District address those if there were impacts to the flowage of the lake.  

District Director Hart replied that on this property, the property owner will be entering into a 

Maintenance Agreement with the District where they will be responsible for the maintenance of 

the entire water management system; and that will include the lakes and the pipes, and if they do 

not provide the maintenance that is required, the District has the right to go in and perform the 

maintenance work, and be reimbursed for its cost.  The first recourse would be to contact the 

HOA, and if they do not perform the work, the District will perform it, and invoice the HOA for 

the District’s costs. 

 

Commissioner Good asked District Director Hart, if the District already has a Maintenance 



 

 

 -3- 

 

Agreement in place.  District Director Hart said that he believes the District does have one in 

place, but he would need to verify it.  He said that there are a number of different parcels within 

Raintree, and he does believe that there is one in place for the first development, which is “Estates 

of Mayfair”; and that agreement will be extended to include the entire Raintree development.  

Chair Hodges added that the District does not release the Certificates of Occupancy (CO’s) for the 

homes until they have an agreement in place.   

 

Commissioner Good asked if the requirement to enter into a Maintenance Agreement was stated in 

the easement release documents.  District Director Hart replied that it is stated in the permit 

conditions for the property.  Commissioner Good asked if the permit conditions are related to the 

vacation of the easements.  District Director Hart explained that they are tied together in that the 

paving and drainage plans reflect the new alignment and the new configuration of the lakes and 

pipes; and the applicant was made aware that they need to clean up the easements; and the District 

needs to get the easements corrected; and as a condition of the site plan approval and permit 

issuance, that the property owners are required to enter into the agreement.  Typically, the 

agreement gets done prior to final acceptance; that is the sequence that the District follows on all 

development projects.  Before the District signs off and accepts any of the work, or any CO’s are 

issued, the District requires that the agreement be executed and recorded.  Commissioner Good 

noted that process is for giving a permit and accepting the work, but this request is for giving up 

certain rights in order to gain other rights.   

 

Commissioner Good commented that the District can do the release and then have something go 

wrong with the permit and never execute the agreement; but by then the District may have already 

released the easements.  He said he likes the concept that the release does not happen until the 

agreements are in place as well, not contingent on the permit.  District Director Hart said he has no 

problem, if in addition to the condition that the new easements are dedicated, that the agreement 

also be executed.  He said he doesn’t think the applicant would have any problem with that as well, 

because they are already aware that it needs to be done.  Commissioner Good suggested that the 

District modify it to say that the easements will not be released until SBDD gets the agreement.  

District Director Hart agreed.  Attorney Bell added that the release will not be recorded or finalized 

until such time as the agreement has been entered into, and it should all be recorded 

simultaneously.   

 

Commissioner Good made an Amendment to the motion, for the approval for the Release & 

Vacation of Drainage Easements at the Raintree Development contingent upon the acceptance of 

the Maintenance Agreement”.  Vice Chair Ryan seconded the Amendment to the motion. 

 

Commissioner Goggin asked District Director Hart if the boat ramp exists somewhere else.  

District Director Hart replied yes; that boat ramp is provided in another location on that lake and 

that he reviewed this with the District’s Operations Manager.  

 

Commissioner Good established that the District does not own the water body, and there is an 

easement, and that there are new rules on water quality.  He asked District Director Hart if there 

was an impairment on this body of water, how does that impact the District, and who is responsible 

for the water quality remediation.  District Director Hart replied that if there was an impairment, 

and the water  body was declared to be impaired by the state, the way the state enforces the 

provisions for remediation, as far as Best Management Practices and the clean-up, is through the 

city’s NPDES permit.  He said that this is the mechanism that the state uses on any impaired 

waterbody right now.  He said that he believes that it would be the same process for a private water 

body within the city, if it were declared to be impaired.  Whether the HOA would be responsible, 



 

 

 -4- 

 

or because it is privately owned, how that would factor into that process, he is not sure because 

that situation has never come up.  He does know that the agency that makes those declarations is 

the state (FDEP), and they use the MS4 Permit as their mechanism for implementing an action 

plan and TMDLs to try to lower the impairment.   

 

Commissioner Good queried that if this lake discharges into a SBDD owned asset, which this lake 

does, and it begins to impair the SBDD owned asset, would the District be responsible to mitigate 

the impaired water that is entering its asset.  District Director Hart stated that this has not been the 

case to date, that he has seen; and even under the new rules, he has not seen where the local 

drainage district, whether ownership or not, has been the responsible party to do the remediation; it 

has fallen to the cities, under the MS4 Permits.  He said that there is a whole process they go 

through.  He commented that the stakeholders look at the whole basin to try to identify the area of 

concern, and then go out for a site investigation, and try to implement a plan that will reduce the 

loads in whatever manner possible.  He said it could change, but the mechanism that the state uses 

thus far, is the MS4 Permit.   

 

Commissioner Good said that the reason that he is focused on this is because the MS4 Permit only 

relates to certain areas that are not under a separate jurisdiction; and this property falls within a 

separate jurisdiction.  He said that as far as the MS4 Permit, he is not certain that it applies here 

because the Drainage District is exempt from any Broward County rules and regulations.  The 

Drainage District may have to abide by SFWMD rules, and it certainly abides by the State rules.  

He said he wants to vet this out a bit more, because if the District does become responsible for 

impaired waters owned by private properties, the simplest thing would be to say that we are going 

to shut it up and will not let them drain into SBDD’s system until it is fixed; but the District does 

not actually do that.  He then asked District Director Hart if the Maintenance Agreement has 

anything to say about the quality of the water.  District Director Hart replied that this is in their 

permit; that they are required to meet certain water quality standards, but the Maintenance and 

Indemnification Agreement really just focuses on maintenance and indemnifying the District if it 

had to go in and do any work.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh asked if the HOA documents were completed and recorded.  Mr. Jeff 

Schnars from Schnars Engineering Corp., replied that he believed they were completed and 

recorded.  Commissioner Minnaugh said that if the District is concerned about who is responsible 

for water impairment or quality, the District could require them to place language into their HOA 

documents that they are definitely responsible for it, since the HOA will ultimately own the lake 

and that should be part of their recorded documents; stating that the buyers have read it and 

understand what their financial responsibility is.   

 

District Director Hart commented that this lake system is an important conveyance system for the 

District and the surrounding areas, because there are a number of connections from off-site 

properties.  He said that for many years when it was still Raintree, the District did not have the 

easements that he felt were needed on this property.  Pembroke Lakes South all flows through 

Raintree, all the way north to Pines Boulevard; and all those properties flow south and through 

Raintree.  He said that similar to Commissioner Good’s concerns, if there was an impairment 

upstream of Raintree, that may flow into the Raintree system.   

 

District Director Hart stated that Raintree is not an isolated, stand-alone system that is only taking 

run-off from Raintree; this property is taking run-off and water from many surrounding properties.  

He wanted this to be factored in to the questions that Commissioner Good was raising; he said 

these questions were relevant and it may be something to be discussed further as far as the state’s 



 

 

 -5- 

 

practice in dealing with impairments, and the District’s role in those practices and procedures, as 

well as the county’s and the municipality’s.  He said that if anything was found to be an issue 

within the community, whether it be the city, county or District, they would have the ability to go 

in and pin-point the issue and it could be addressed.  

 

Commissioner Minnaugh asked if it would guarantee reimbursement, if the District had to go in 

and do the work.  District Director Hart said that if it got to that point, it would probably involve 

the courts.  Commissioner Minnaugh commented that she thought that the District could avoid the 

courts, should it get to that point, if this wording was included in the HOA documents.  She asked 

who owns the waterbodies to the north.  District Director Hart said that some are owned by the 

District.  He said that the District is finishing up the mapping of the ownership of the waterbodies 

that was discussed previously.  The District should have all the ownership information completed 

by the end of this month, and with that, will begin putting together the policy on erosion 

protection.  Beyond that, he had some additional thoughts to expand that to include the District’s 

responsibilities when it comes to aquatic maintenance, and expand that even further, to include 

water quality. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh withdrew her motion for approval for the Release & Vacation of 

Drainage Easements at the Raintree Development until a consensus is agreed upon as to who is 

responsible for maintenance of the waterbodies; and she would like to see the HOA documents 

updated.  She commented that when Hurricane Wilma hit, the people did not know that Silver 

Lakes owned the lake and that they were all going to be assessed and pay to rebuild it; and 

likewise with Nautica and Sunset Lakes.  This came as a big shock that they were all assessed.  

She said that the District has the ability now to request that this wording be included, and that it is 

totally clarified, so that the District does not have to take it to the courts; because it is a no-win 

situation; because the rest of the taxpayers end up paying all the money the District spends on legal 

fees and court costs. 

 

Commissioner Mersinger commented that she understands that the District has a whole separate 

issue on the maintenance and water quality, but at this moment, all Mr. Schnars is asking for is the 

vacation of the easements; and although she does understands what the issue is, it’s a more 

systemic issue than this piece of property under the new regulations; and she wants to know what it 

has to do with vacating the easements, or is the District going to continue holding on to this until 

the state gets their policy together.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh commented that her take on this is that once this is vacated there is no 

guarantee that there are going to be agreements signed and new easements dedicated; and if there 

are going to be new easements, this is the District’s chance to deal with water quality and who will 

be responsible.  Chair Hodges replied that the District is not releasing the permit, not allowing 

them to get CO’s or sign-offs, and that is the leverage the District has.  He said that the 

Maintenance Agreement and all the documents have to come together at the end of the project 

before the District releases it and allows them to occupy their buildings.   

 

District Director Hart said that, as a condition of approval on the vacations, there would be two 

conditions: (1) the dedication of replacement easements which are already in hand; and (2) the 

execution and recordation of a Maintenance and Indemnification Agreement prior to recording the 

releases; and then the question of water quality could be included as well, and have a requirement 

to include a clause in the HOA documents.  This project has quite a few phases left to complete, so 

he does believe that the District will have the opportunity to include any future requirements as it 

relates to water quality or agreements, etc.  He said this will not be completed within the next year 



 

 

 -6- 

 

and the District can incorporate conditions as well on future permits.  He asked the Board for 

direction on how they want to proceed, he said this is just to vacate and replace easements, but the 

District can include any conditions and provisions as they see fit under this particular petition.   

 

Chair Hodges suggested that language should be placed in the Maintenance and Indemnification 

Agreement.  Commissioner Mersinger suggested a workshop to discuss this further because what 

is being discussed is a much bigger issue than the easements.  She said the District needs to come 

up with some sort of policy on how the District will be handling these situations, and it should not 

be holding up just one petition; when the District really wants coverage on all these bodies of 

water and it should not be piece mealed.  Chair Hodges agreed with Commissioner Mersinger and 

said that this is certainly a relevant conversation that the Board should continue to have, and he 

feels that it is a more global issue that probably relates to more general, long term maintenance, 

rather than just a release of easements.  District Director Hart agreed and commented that you can 

look at it as an expansion of what the Board brought up a few Board meetings ago on erosion, and 

the District’s responsibilities related to that; and homeowner or community responsibilities; or on 

maintenance issues of the lakes, (i.e. trash).  Chair Hodges said that water quality is definitely in 

our purview now, and he believes that Commissioner Good raises very valid points that definitely 

warrant a workshop and more research and detailed discussion.    

 

Commissioner Good commented that the goal here is that the Board is trying to protect the District 

from future incidents that can arise, and there has not been enough history to even try to guess 

what may happen; and it’s not trying to be owneress either, because there are upstream 

contributions.  The goal here is, if that particular location is generating the impairment, then that 

particular location needs to be responsible for the impairment.  He said that he believes that can be 

easily resolved.  He said there is a need to go beyond the permit; and that there is probably a case 

law that when you issue a permit and 10 years later when there is a change in rules, he does not 

know that you can relate back to the permit and get the change implemented.  We are subject to 

change, that is what government does; but once in a permit, it may not allow you to do that.  

Whereas he believes that you may be able to create language, such that you can hold an owner of 

an asset responsible for their contribution to other assets.  He said that personally, he likes the fact 

that the District tried to deal with it in the Maintenance Agreement because that is probably the 

place to go, and as Commissioner Minnaugh mentioned, if there are other documentation, like the 

HOA Documents, it would be most appropriate to address there as well.  He said she is right, when 

she says that you don’t want to take this to court, because the District can wind up with an 

additional burden.  He said yes, this is all about easements, but once you get what you want, what 

incentive does the property owner have to participate.  He said if the District has the agreement, 

the additional language about water quality, and the language referenced by Commissioner 

Minnaugh as a condition, then we can move forward, if Commissioner Minnaugh agrees to that.  

He believes that then we could have a workshop, but he does not believe that just because we 

could have a workshop, we should let some awareness before the Board just go away.  District 

Director Hart added, that the three conditions he is hearing are: the dedication of the new 

easements, along with execution of the maintenance agreement, and inclusion in the HOA 

documents of a provision on water quality requirements within a community.  

 

Mr. Schnars commented on the three conditions.  He said that this is a four phase project, and there 

are permits for two of the phases; and that this easement abandonment is in the second phase of the 

project.  He said that there are houses going up and they will probably be asking for a CO in the 

next couple of months.  He said there are no issues on agreeing to record the new easements and 

entering into the Maintenance Agreement, but he said it would be difficult for him to agree to a 

condition of adding something to the HOA document that he does not even know what it is.  He 



 

 

 -7- 

 

asked, “what if he leaves here with a condition that says something needs to be added, but can’t 

agree as to what it is”?  He agrees that this is a global issue, and the Board needs to decide on what 

their policy is regarding water quality, and if that is something that will be included in the future 

on the District’s maintenance agreements.  He said they have water quality provisions in their 

SFWMD permits; but he does not know if that’s included in the SBDD permit.  He suggested that 

perhaps this is something that may be added to the SBDD permit also as a global policy; but that 

they are well on their way on this particular project, and would like to continue forward.  He said 

this is clean-up work of documents, and the Board should be able to move forward with whatever 

the current rules and regulations are.  He doesn’t believe there should be conditions added to this 

project at this time, unless there is something new that is ready to go right now. 

 

Chair Hodges stated that these are current rules and regulations.  He said that they are just having a 

discussion and making sure that everyone complies; and that he hears what Mr. Schnars is saying, 

and there is some relevance to that, but there is also the concern the Board has on protecting the 

Drainage District and their rights if something happens, moving forward with water quality. 

 

Commissioner Mersinger asked Mr. Schnars if they have an agreement with SFWMD regarding 

water quality.  Mr. Schars answered yes.  Chair Hodges commented that there are all sorts of 

calculations that need to be performed and that water quality is a portion; and that there are two 

different permits that are needed.  Commissioner Mersinger asked Chair Hodges that if the water 

was tested would that be it, or if it’s a continual process.  Commissioner Good clarified that the 

answer is yes and no.  He said the reason why it is yes and no is because there are two types of 

permits; a construction permit and an operating permit.  He said the relevant question here is, is it a 

construction permit or an operating permit.   

 

District Director Hart commented that any development project is required to meet certain water 

quality standards within that property.  He said that when construction is finished, the District 

issues an Operation and Maintenance permit from SBDD.  Commissioner Mersinger asked if the 

petitioner needs to have an Operational permit from SFWMD at the beginning.  District Director 

Hart explained that SFWMD issues a permit, and when the construction is finished, the engineer 

certifies the system to the District, and they convert the project from construction to operation; but 

the conditions and requirements under the permit remain in place.  What SBDD does is issue a 

new permit, an Operation and Maintenance permit, and it goes hand-in-hand with the District’s 

agreement because the agreement is executed, signed, and recorded; and he feels this is a higher 

level when it comes to requirements.  He said that in the Operation permit that SBDD issues, the 

District could add language on water quality, and that goes to the applicant and to the HOA, etc.  

He said he likes the idea of adding that language in the Operation permit.   

 

Commissioner Goggin clarified that right now they are at a construction phase and he agrees that 

at this point the District needs to know where they will be at a final stage, and that these things 

need to be implemented.  District Director Hart agreed with Commissioner Goggin and suggested 

that language be added regarding water quality in the Operation and Maintenance permit.  Chair 

Hodges agreed and said that all these ideas and discussions would be generated in the workshop 

and the District will add more details as they move forward. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh commented that it’s always been this District’s policy that when 

someone comes in to request something on their property, and they are looking to get a release or a 

vacation, that this is the opportunity to get everything that the District wants, because there is no 

better time to do this; and she know that the philosophy is to work with them etc., but she feels that 

now is the time to get done what the District wants done.  She feels strongly that something needs 



 

 

 -8- 

 

to be in their HOA documents for the people that will be living there and paying for all this stuff.  

She said that she is not looking to reinvent the wheel.  She said that between Attorney Bell and 

District Director Hart, they can come up with wording.  She said she just wants something that 

once it’s turned over, they become the new owner, if the developer is not in there, they own it and 

are responsible for it; that there is a 5-year recertification that every HOA goes through, and more 

importantly that the HOA will be financially responsible for it.  District Director Hart replied that 

he thinks that can be done.   

 

Commissioner Good stated that if there is a barrier along the way, it can always come back to the 

Board.  Commissioner Good made a motion to accept the vacation of the easements contingent 

upon the acceptance of a maintenance agreement which includes water quality, and contingent 

upon the acceptance of new dedicated easements, and contingent upon the acceptance of revised 

HOA language that would address this particular water quality concern or any other maintenance 

concern.  Commissioner Goggin seconded the motion. 

 

Commissioner Mersinger said that when the 5-year certification is performed and deficiencies are 

found, the HOA has to fix those deficiencies.  She asked why is it that important to place language 

there, if the language is already there in the 5-year certification.  Commissioner Good replied that 

language is not in there yet.  Chair Hodges said that it is not so much water quality, it’s more the 

functionality of the flow, broken pipes/manhole, etc.  Commissioner Mersinger asked due to the 

new legislation, shouldn’t the certification change.  Chair Hodges commented that is where the 

Board is trying to get to, but that is not in place today.  Attorney Bell suggested that as part of the 

motion, that if for some reason they do not give the District the new easements or do not get the 

agreement the District is looking for, that the approval of the vacation is recinded.  Chair Hodges 

clarified that is the motion that Commissioner Good made with conditions. 

 

The question was called and carried unanimously.   

 

B. REQUEST TO TRANSFER FUNDS FROM CIP COMMITTED ACCOUN TO GENERAL 

OPERATING ACCOUNT FOR COMPLETED CIP PROJECTS 

District Director Hart said that SBDD recently completed work on a number of CIP projects and  

requested approval to transfer $142,209.98 from the SBDD Capital Improvement Committed 

Account to the SBDD General Operating Account as reimbursement for 2014/2015 CIP projects. 

 

Commissioner Goggin moved for approval to transfer funds as requested from the SBDD CIP 

Committed Account to SBDD General Operating Account.  Motion was seconded by 

Commissioner Mersinger and carried unanimously. 

 

C. OTHER 

 

 Year End Audit – District Director Hart said that they have started work on the year end audit 

with the accountant and should have it to the Board in draft form in January 2016.  He credited 

the staff and Susan Iratzoqui for the good work that they’ve done throughout the year. 

 

 Completion of Basin Improvements- District Director Hart stated that the 48” interconnect pipe 

along SW 145th Avenue, from Century Village to the Monarch Lakes Canal, has been 

completed, and now there is a secondary outfall for those areas that the District did not have 

before.  In addition to that, with the funds that the District received for those improvements, the 

District was able to replace the roof at the S-3 Pump Station; and do some other improvements 



 

 

 -9- 

 

there as well; and the District completed the sluice gates at the S-3 Pump Station and have 

added those to the District’s control and telemetry system.  

 

 Mapping of Water Bodies- This work should be finished this week. 

 

 Discussion of Annual Assessment - District Director Hart stated that during the discussion last 

month of the annual assessment, and if the information the he and Attorney Bell received from 

the property appraiser’s office is accurate, there was question as to how much it would cost to 

get a complete audit from a third party.  Director Hart indicated that the cost would be 

$264,265.00.  He said that is because this would be done by a certified planner, and they would 

need to look at each property, etc.  He said that on a better note, creating a map of the sub-

basins for the assessments would be less than $5,000, and maybe even half of that.  He said they 

will be moving forward to complete that.  He said even the cost to perform an audit on a basin-

by-basin basis from an outside, independent company is expensive, but District Director Hart 

feels this can be done in-house, if it is the Board’s direction.  

 

Commissioner Goggin asked Attorney Bell if he recalls a couple of years ago he spent some 

time on this situation where he found some information/language, and he was able to redirect 

some codes and find where there were some problems.  Attorney Bell replied yes, they 

constantly update that because they always find some parcels that for some reason are not being 

assessed by the District because they are coded wrong, so this is ongoing yearly.   

 
05. ATTORNEY’S REPORT: 

 
 Attorney Bell said that Senator Ring proposed Senate Bill 516, and what is being asked only of Special 

Districts is burdensome, probably unnecessary, unfunded and costly.  It’s a lot of work to put this 
together and no one else is being required to do it.  Commissioner Mersinger said she looked at this and 
it was sent to five committees which tells her that it is a road block and she doubts very highly that it will 
get through all five committees during session, which she says is a good thing.  She said most of the 
things on the list the District already does.  Attorney Bell disagreed.  He says that we post our budget, 
but not the graphs and the detail formats that they are asking for.  She says she would keep an eye on it, 
but she believes there is going to be a lot of pushback and that is why it went to five committees.  Chair 
Hodges asked if the District knows if the FASD is looking at this.  District Director Hart replied yes; and 
as Attorney Bell mentioned, it doesn’t apply to any other agency, and it’s burdensome, etc.; and finally if 
anyone is interested in getting this information, they can obtain it through a public records request.  
What the bill requires is that this all be placed on your webpage.  FASD is tracking it closely, are 
opposed to it, and trying to discourage it. 

 
 Attorney Bill said that there are two other bills, (Companion Bills) Senate bill 552 and House bill 7005 

which looks like they will apply to South Florida Water Management District and DEP.  He said that 
there is a summary analysis that was done which is 30 pages or so, and this is something which he will 
follow. 

  
06. APPROVAL OF LEGAL FEES 
 
 Commissioner Goggin moved for approval of the legal bills.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner 

Mersinger. 
 
 Commissioner Minnaugh had concerns regarding the coordination on Monarch Lakes and the 172nd 

Avenue Tree Removal.   
 



 

 

 -10- 

 

 District Director Hart clarified and said that, unfortunately, there is a pending lawsuit involving Monarch 
Lakes; it’s the Property Association and the Engineering firm and some other parties; the District is not 
involved in the lawsuit.  The District has received subpoenas for records, and staff has been subpoenaed 
for deposition; and because they have subpoenaed staff, he felt that Attorney Bell should be there 
representing.  He said that although the District is not party to this, they will be incurring some expense, 
because of the subpoenas that they are receiving.  He clarified that there is no action taken against the 
District at this time. 

 
 The tree removal is really for the District’s benefit.  He said the District wanted to remove some trees 

along 172nd Avenue canal and the trees extend outside of the right-of-way and he wanted to make sure 
that the District is covered with the property owners to go in and remove them.  He said they were in 
agreement with this and he just wanted to cover all bases on that. 

 
 On Lenis, there was an issue where they got fined several hundred thousand dollars for code violations 

by the City, and they are trying to show that this is unreasonable and get a lower amount.  They 
requested a number of records from the District.  Commissioner Minnaugh asked if the District got 
reimbursed for that.  District Director Hart said that he was initially concerned that this might be 
something that the District was going to be pulled into, so he asked Attorney Bell to guide him on how 
to prepare the documents, and Attorney Bell significantly reduced the amount of time staff had to spend 
to put the public records request together, and the District wound up providing much less documentation 
that what was originally noted.  He said he doesn’t mind asking for reimbursement, but he does not 
know if he can justify that this was part of the cost to prepare the records.  He said it was really counsel 
from the attorney to the Director.  He said the District did provide the public records and received 
payment for the copies.  Commissioner Minnaugh said that in that case she doesn’t have any problem 
with it.  Chair Hodges asked that maybe he should rephrase it a little better on how this was described. 

 
 Commissioner Good recommended that the attorney resubmit the bill as to where the charges really go, 

whether it is to public request or general counsel for staff.  Commissioner Minnaugh suggested that it be 
approved subject to changing the verbage on the legal bill.  

 
 The question was called and it was carried unanimously.   
  

07. BOARD MEMBER’S QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 

 

None. 

       

08. MEETING DATE(S) 

 
A. Next Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, November 19th at 8:00 a.m.  

 

Adjournment at 9:22 A.M.  

 

Respectfully submitted,  

 

  

                                                                             

Robert E. Goggin IV, Secretary 

South Broward Drainage District 

 

/rim 












































































